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Annex 1

Sources and resources

Sources

Acheson D (1998) Independent Inquiry into
Inequalities in Health Report. London, The Stationery
Office

http://www.official-documents.co.uk/
document/doh/ih/ih.htm

Association of London Government (2001) Survey
Among Londoners 2000. London, ALG
http://www.alg.gov.uk

Atkins J, Barelli J and Chell M (2000) Taking stock of
what we know: A statistical assessment of black and
minority ethnic housing needs. London, London
Research Centre, The Housing Corporation, National
Housing Federation, Association of London
Government

Bardsley M (1999) Project Megapoles: Health in
Europe’s Capitals. London, European Commission
http://www.holp.org/publications.htm

Bardsley M, Jones | R, Kemp V, Aspinall P, Dodhia H
and Bevan P (1998) Housing and health in London:
a review. London, Health of Londoners Project
http://Awww.holp.org/publications.htm

COMEAP (Department of Health Committee on the
Medical Effects of Air Pollution) (2001) Quantification
of the effects of air pollution on health in the United
Kingdom. London, The Stationery Office
http://www.doh.gov.uk/hef/airpol/airpolh.htm

Crime Concern (1999) A review to support the
development of the health strategy for London: crime
and disorder, report prepared for the London
Regional Office of the NHS Executive
http://www.doh.gov.uk/london

Dahlgren G and Whitehead M (1991) Policies and
strategies to promote social equity in health.
Stockholm, Institute for Futures Studies

Dawson | and Hamm J (2000) The London Health
Strateqy: Statistical Supplement. London, NHS
Executive London Regional Office

Department for Education and Employment (2001)
GCSE/GNVQ and A/AS achievements of pupils in
schools in England 1995/96 — 1999/2000
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Department for Education and Skills (2001) Youth
Cohort Study: The activities and experiences of 16
year olds: England and Wales 2000, SFR 02/2001,
revised October 2001. London, DETR
www.dfes.gov.uk

Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions (1998) English House Condition Survey 1996.
London, DETR

Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions (1999) A better quality of life: a strategy for
sustainable development for the United Kingdom.
London, DETR

Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions (2000) Indices of Deprivation 2000. London,
DETR

Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions (2001) Road accident involvement of children
from ethnic minorities: a literature review, Road
Safety Research Report No. 19. London, DTLR

Department of the Environment, Transport and the
Regions, Housing Investment Programme (HIP) data
for London, April 2000, commissioned by Greater
London Authority

Department of Health (1999) Saving lives: Our
Healthier Nation. London, The Stationery Office
www.ohn.gov.uk

Department of Health (2000a) The NHS Plan. London,
The Stationery Office
www.doh.gov.uk/nhsplan/index.htm

Department of Health (2000b) Health Survey for
England: results adult data 1993-1999
http://Awww.doh.gov.uk/public/summary1.htm

Department of Health (2001a) The National Health
Inequalities Targets. London, Department of Health
www.doh.gov.uk/healthinequalities/index.htm

Department of Health (2001b) Tackling Health
Inequalities: a consultation on a plan for delivery.
London, Department of Health
www.doh.gov.uk/healthinequalities/index.htm

Department for Transport, Local Government and the
Regions (2001) Road Accidents Great Britain: 2000,
The casualty report



2002 review of the London Health Strategy high-level indicators

Dobson J and Henthorne K (1999) Pupil mobility in
schools, DfEE Research Brief No.168, research
commissioned by Department for Education and
Employment. London, Migration Research Unit,
Department Geography, University College London

Drever F and Whitehead M (1997) Health Inequalities.
London, The Stationery Office

Environmental Health News (1999) ‘Poor choke on
London car fumes’, 14(24): 2

European Environment Agency (1998) Assessment
and Management of Urban Air Quality in Europe.
Office for Official Publications of the European
Communities

Expert Panel on Air Quality Standards (1996a) Report
on Nitrogen Dioxide. London, DETR

Expert Panel on Air Quality Standards (1996b)
Airborne Particulate Matter in the UK, Third Report.
Birmingham, University of Birmingham

Fitzpatrick J and Jacobson B (2001) Mapping health
inequalities across London. London, London Health
Observatory
http://www.lho.org.uk/pubs/p_pubs.htm

Greater London Authority (2001) The Mayor’s draft
air quality strategy. London, GLA

Hattersley L (1999) ‘Trends in life expectancy by
social class — an update’, Health Statistics Quarterly
2:16-24
http://Awww.statistics.gov.uk/OnlineProducts/
default.asp#health

Hattersley L and Creeser R. (1995) Longitudinal Study
1971-1999. History, organisation and quality of data,
Series LS 7. London, HMSO

Home Office (1999) The British Crime Survey 1999
www.homeoffice.gov.uk

Home Office (2000) The British Crime Survey 2000,
Home Office Statistical Bulletin 18/00

Home Office (2001) British Crime Survey 2001 first
result
www.homeoffice.gov.uk

Hospital episode statistics 1998-1999

Kuh D, Power C, Blane D and Bartley M (1997)
‘Social pathways between childhood and adult
health’ in Kuh D and Ben-Shlomo Y (eds) A Life-
course Approach to Chronic Disease Epidemiology.
Oxford, Oxford Medical Publications

Labour Force Survey four-quarter average
2000-2001, produced for GLA
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Labour Force Survey Quarterly Supplement (Summer
2001), published November 2001

Labour Force Survey Quarterly Supplement (Winter
2000-2001), published May 2001

Levenson R and Edmans T (2001) Working for health
— the NHS as an employer and its role in
regeneration. London, King’s Fund

London Health Commission and Informing
Committee of the Assembly (2001) Health Impact
Assessment — Air Quality

London Health Observatory (2001) Calculating life
expectancy and infant mortality rates
http://Awww.lho.org.uk/pubs/p_pubs.htm#lho

McCarthy M, Ferguson J and Soderland N (1996)
Transport in London and the Implications for Health.
London, The Health of Londoners Project
http://Awww.holp.org/publications.htm

Modood T (1997) Ethnic minorities in Britain. London,
Policy Studies Institute

Morgan D, Bardsley M and Lowdell C (2001) Initial
statistical overview of injury and accidents in London.
London, The Health of Londoners Project
http://www.holp.org/publications.htm

National Health Service Executive, King's Fund,
Government Office for London, Association of
London Government, Social Services Inspectorate
(2000) Our Healthier Nation, The London Health
Strategy. London, NHS Executive London Regional
Office

New Earnings Survey time series data made available
to GLA

NHS London Regional Office (2002) Employment
improves your health: regeneration and employment
in health and social care

http://www.london.nhs.uk

Office for National Statistics (2000) Social Trends 30.
London, HMSO

Office for National Statistics (2001a) Claimant Count,
October 2001

Office for National Statistics (2001b) Social Trends 31.
London, The Stationery Office
http://www.statistics.gov.uk/products/p5748.asp

Office for National Statistics (2001¢) Trends in life
expectancy by social class 1972-1999. London, ONS
http://Awww.statistics.gov.uk/products/p8460.asp

Office for National Statistics, Labour Force Survey,
Labour Force Survey local area database and tables
specially commissioned by GLA
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OFSTED (1999) Raising the attainment of ethnic
minority pupils

Pathak S (2000) Race research for the future:
Ethnicity in education, training and the labour
market, Department for Education and Employment
RTPO1. London, DfEE

Raleigh V S and Kiri V A (1997) ‘Life expectancy in
England: variations and trends by gender, health
authority and level of deprivation’, Journal of
Epidemiology and Community Health 51: 649-58

Standard Occupational Classification (1990 and
2000)

www.statistics.gov.uk/methods.quality/
classifications.asp

SEIPH-ERG (2001) Air Pollution London 1999: The
Seventh Report of the London Air Quality Network.
London, King’s College

Smith J and Harding S (1997) ‘Mortality of men and
women using alternative social classifications’ in
Drever F and Whitehead M Health inequalities,
168-85. London, The Stationery Office

Southwark Housing, MORI, Greater London
Authority (2001) Research into the role of registered
social landlords in meeting the housing requirements
of black and ethnic communities in Southwark, Vols
1 and 2, London, Southwark Housing

Stedman, J R, Linehan E and King, K (1999)
Quantification of the health effects of air pollution in
the UK for the review of the national air quality
strategy. London, DETR

Transport for London (2001) Towards the year 2010:
monitoring casualties in Greater London, Issue 1.
London, Transport for London

Transport for London, Accident figures
Victor C (1992) 'Health status of the temporary

homeless population and residents of NW Thames
Region’, British Medical Journal 305: 387-91
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Resources

Useful web sites
www.detr.gov.uk (for DETR index)

www.homeoffice.gov.uk (for national police statistics)
www.met.police.uk (for metropolitan police statistics)

www.londonshealth.gov.uk (for the London Health
Commission and London Health Strategy)

www.lho.org.uk (for the London Health Observatory)

Further reading

London-specific

Bardsley M, Barker M, Bhan A, Farrow S, Gill M,
Jacobson B and Morgan D (1998) The health of
Londoners: a public health report for London.
London, The King's Fund
http://www.holp.org/publications.htm

Lowdell C, Evandrou M, Bardsley M, Morgan D and
Solijak M (2000) Health of ethnic minority elders in
London: Respecting Diversity. London, Health of
Londoners Programme
http://Awww.holp.org/publications.htm

Health determinants and health inequalities
Graham H (2000) Understanding health inequalities.
Buckingham, Open University Press

Marmot M and Wilkinson R G (eds) (1999) Social
determinants of health. Oxford, Oxford University
Press

Health, race and ethnicity
Smaje C (1995) Health, Race and Ethnicity. London,
The King's Fund

Air quality

Hayat S, Haines A, Goubet S, Atkinson R W and
Anderson R H (1999) ‘Association of air pollution
with daily GP consultation for asthma and other
lower respiratory conditions in London’, Thorax 54:
605

Poliniecki J D, Atkinson R W, Ponce de Leon A,
Anderson H R (1997) 'Daily time series for cardiovas-
cular hospital admissions and previous day’s air
pollution in London’, Journal of Occupational
Environmental Medicine 54: 535-40
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Acronyms
co

DETR

DfEE

DOH

DTLR

GLA
HIP
ILO
LFS
LHC
LHO
LRC
NO,
NO,
0O,
ONS

PM,,
SEIPH-ERG
SO,

SOC

TfL

Carbon monoxide
(former) Department of the
Environment, Transport and

the Regions

(former) Department for Education
and Employment

Department of Health

Department for Transport, Local
Government and the Regions

Greater London Authority
Housing Investment Programme
International Labour Organisation
Labour Force Survey

London Health Commission
London Health Observatory
(former) London Research Centre
Nitrogen dioxide

Oxides of nitrogen

Ozone

Office for National Statistics

Fine particles (less than 10 microns
in diameter)

South-East Institute of Public Health

Environmental Research Group

(King's College, University of London)

Sulphur dioxide

Standard Occupational Classification

Transport for London
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Glossary

Exceedences

When an air quality objective is not achieved
(definition in Greater London Authority Air Quality
Strategy: ‘It has to be related to the time period of
the objective, e.g. a daily or annual average, and to
a particular site’)

Older boroughs

Characterised by the older private housing and
modern social housing, predominantly flats, that is
found in the urban core of London.

Suburban boroughs
Include most of Outer London and some larger
towns in the South-East.

Social class

Social class (based on occupation) groups
occupations together in terms of occupational skill.
Until recently this fivefold hierarchical classification
has been used in government statistics and is the
basis of the social class statistics in this report. The
classification is shown below.

Non-manual

I Professional occupations, e.g. accountants,
doctors, engineers

I Managerial and technical occupations, e.g.
marketing and sales managers, teachers

N Skilled occupations — non-manual, e.g. clerks,

cashiers

Manual

M Skilled occupations — manual, e.g. carpenters,
joiners

IV Partly skilled occupations, e.g. security guards,
warehousemen

V. Unskilled occupations, e.g labourers, cleaners

In 2001, the government introduced the new
National Statistics Socio-economic Classification
(NS-SEC). This takes account of social changes,
and is based not on skill levels but on employment
relations and conditions. The new NS-SEC
classification is shown below:

1 Higher managerial and professional occupations

2 Lower managerial and professional occupations

3 Intermediate occupations, e.g. mid-level sales
and technical occupations

4 Small employers and own account workers

5 Lower supervisory and technical occupations

6 Semi-routine occupations

7 Routine occupations

8 Never worked and long-term unemployed
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Annex 2
Note on method

Key characteristics of the indicators  Obtaining relevant, accurate

The London Health Strategy stated that, ideally, the information

indicators should have the following features: Throughout this report, there is an emphasis on
relevant, accurate information. This can be obtained
@ Be well-established in a variety of ways, including the following.
@® Form part of a high level agenda »  Some of the indicators, like the ILO measure of
unemployment, are based on samples, which can
©® Embrace the widest determinants of health only produce estimates of the true figure. If
random sampling is used, as in the Labour Force
@ Belong equally to all partners Survey, one can assess the margins of error;
where these margins are too great, the data have
@ Have public acceptance and understanding. been omitted.
All these qualities are clearly relevant to a public »  For other indicators, there are full records;
strategy. therefore, there is no issue of sampling reliability.
However, there are still important issues to do with
There are other ‘bottom line" qualities which the how the data were obtained and whether they are,
indicators need to share with all other measures of in fact, valid measures. For example:

this kind. These are:
— For those indicators where the numbers are

»  Validity. The indicator must measure what it small — for instance, infant mortality — there is
purports to measure. To use an analogy, the arrows an issue of how reliable these figures are and
must hit the target. whether the differences between groups and

areas of London could have occurred due to

» Reliability. Repeated measurements should produce random variation. Where possible, we have
the same or very similar results. In other words, the accounted for this by grouping years of data
arrows should fall close together. An indicator can together so that we can present robust
be valid but it also needs a reliable measuring differences between areas and groups.

procedure if it is to be effective.
— Police statistics cover all crimes recorded by the

»  Clarity of definition. police but many crimes are not reported or
recorded. One also needs to consider the

»  Availability. It must be possible to obtain the data. context in which data are provided: is there
pressure to show a downturn in crime? Are the

Measurability is preferable but not essential for an figures subject to independent audit? So far as

indicator. There are important qualitative data which possible, we have used well-established

cannot be measured. sources, but where there is doubt, this is

mentioned in the report.
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Finding out more

For more information, or to make a contribution to
specific areas of work of the London Health Commission,
contact: Gus Wilson or Liza Cragg, London Health
Commission, Greater London Authority, Romney House,
43 Marsham Street,

London SW1P 3PY. Tel: 020 7983 4120.

Email: gus.wilson@london.gov.uk

To find out more about the work of the London Health
Commission, the London Health Strategy, and resources
and research, see our web site:
www.londonshealth.gov.uk or
www.london.gov.uk/mayor/health_commission

For more information about the London Health
Observatory, visit its web site at: www.lho.org.uk




